.'.i‘

it

&
L







G

P

*ﬁ — 5

f? fi a 4 A
A F f &

PRICE THREE-PENCE 4

| — - —

THE

T R I A L

THOMAS BENNETT,

FOR FORGING

A Bill of Exchange, &c.

o T e e R e i L R e L LT T e o e TR
— e — - — - = e — R

BEING

NUMBER .

OF

A SELECTION

OF ALL THE

PRINCIPAL TRIALS

AT THE

Old Bailey,
In April Seffion, 1797.

TARKEN IN SHORT-HAND

BY E:. HODGSON,
Short Hand-Writer to the Old Bailey for Eleven Years.

TO BE CONTINUED THROUGH EV ERY SESSION.

Publithed by J. FAIRBURN, 146, Minories; and -
fold by E. HopcsonN, Elim Place, Ietter Lane, *




‘Lﬁ; s A D ERITISPMENT.

U ;
10/

e e — R i ————

THE Intention of this Work, is to prelent to the
Public an opportunity of purchafing for Tnrre
PENcE oNLY, any principal Trial complete, through-
out every Seflion at the Old Bailey, in two or three
Days after the Trial is ended.

If any extraordinary Calfe fhould happen, and prove
exceedingly long, we may, perhaps, be under the ne-
ceflity of printing fuch Trial in two Numbers, but
that we 1magine, will happen very feldom.

The laft Number of every Sefflion will contain a
Brief Account of all the Trials for Larcenies, the
Names of the Prifoners, with the Sentence pafled
on cach, together with every Circumitance that oc-
curred on fuch Trials, worthy Notice; and allo an

INDEX, fhewing in what Page to find every Pri-
{oner’s Trial. - I

The Work fhall be well printed in O¢ttavo, on good
Paper, and comprifed in as few Numbers as poflible,
(according to the Number of principal Trials that may
happen) and fo contrived, that at the End of every
Year, or Seflion, they may be bound together.

. The authenticity of it cannot be for a Moment

doubted, as Mr. Hopcson, (who takes them in
Short-Hand) has been publicly known in that Profef-
fion, for upwards of Twenty Years, Eleven of which
he has been Short-hand Wiriter to the Old Bailey.

This Plan, on account of its cheapnefs and com-
pletenefs, we hope will not fail of giving univerfal
Satisfaélion. "N
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Tealimdeac A |y
__ OF '
THOMAS BENNETT,

FOR FORGING

A Bill of Exchange.

THOMAS BENNETT was indiéted, for that he
having in his cuflody a certain paper writing, pur-
porting to. be a Bill of Exchange, dated London,
Fanuary 10, 1797, with the name T. Bennett, thereto
Sfubfcribed, and divetted to Mr. William Coflett,
Sugar-Refiner, Great Garden-flreet,” Whitechapel,
for the payment of g3l. 8s. 4d. -to the order of the
Jfaid T. Bennett, on the goth Day of Fanuary laft,
falfly and felonioufly did make, forge, and counter-
fest, anddid willingly aét and affift in the falfe making,
forging, and counterfeiting upon the fard paper writ-
ing, purporting to be a Bill of Exchange, the name
of William Coflett, purporting to be an Acceptance of
the fard Bill of Exchange, as follows, viz. * Wm.
Cofletty” with intention to defraud Jonx Boxbp and
BenjamiNn Boxbp, againfl the Statue. '

A fecond Count, for uttering the fame knowing it to be
forged, with the like intention.

There were feveral other Counts, only varying as to the
manner of charge. |

The Indiétment opened by Mr. RE1x E, and the Cale
by Mr. ConsT.

STEPHEN PATTERSHALL, fworn.

bxamingd by Mr. KN APP.
AM clerk to Meflrs. Bonds’, they are bankers, in ‘Change
Alley, Cornhill.

Q. What is the firm of their houfe >—~4. John and Benjamin
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0. Do you know the prifoner at the bar ?—4.Yes.

Q. When did you firft {ee him ?—4. The 28th of Septem-
ber lait. -

0. In confequence, I believe, of fome recommendation of
the prifoner to Meflrs. Bonds, he was permitted to enter an
account with you ?—4. He was.

Q. Did he entera large fum of money, or how ?—/4. Three
hundred pounds. |

0. For fome confiderable time, I believe, there was no over-
drawing by the prifoner, in his accounts,—A4. No, generally a
ballance in his favour, I may venture to {ay aiways conftantly,
that is, I mean to {ay, he did not over-draw,

Q. Do you remember his coming to your houle on the 13th
of January laft ’—4. Yes, he paid in {ome bills on that day.

Q. What bills were they 7—A4, There were three bills of
exchange, I cannot recollett, without reterring to the books.

Q. Look at that bill, is that one ?—A4. Yes.

(). What converfation paffed at the time he paid it in ?——A4.
I do not recollett any converfation, the bills were received and
~ carried to his account; 1 do not recolleét feeing him again till
the 16th ot the {ame month. |

Q. What paffed then?—4. Mr. Bennett came into our
banking-(hop, and began drawing two drafts, when he gave his
drafts, which were for a confiderable {um, we found his ac-
count was very much over-drawn ; 1 defired him to walk into
the compting-houfe, I told him his account was very much
over-drawn, and he faid, he was rather {urprifed, as the bills
he left the other day to difcount, would more than cover his
ballance ; I told him 1t was not agreeable to difcount thole
bills ; he feemed rather vexed : he obferved, that the warrants
were fufficient fecurity for the money he wanted, (by the war-
rants he mentioned) were meant other {ecurities, which we had
from him: he prefled very much for the accommodation, if
only for a few days; in confequence ot this, he had the money
he wanted, gooi. and upwards. =

Q. Now, I believe, in confequence of fome information
you had on this bufinels, no matter what, you went to the pri-
foner at the bar P—4. Yes. . :

Q. When was this 7—4, It was on the g1ft of January, I
found the prifoncr in cuftody, and went down.

Mr. Fielding, Prifoner’s Counfel. Q. You, of courle, went
on that melancholy occafion, to obtain fome difcovery trom

him P~—4, I went in confequence of fome bills e had.
' 0. You
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Q. You went, in hope of fome information he might give
you?—2A. Certainly : 11{aid, I am very forry to fee you in
that fituation, |

. 1takeit for granted, youhad many opportunities of feeing
him in other fituations, when all was friendfhip and fair ?—4.
always, | < g

Q. When you afked any queftions, I take it for granted, you
believed he would give you an anfwer honeftly >—4. 1f I bhad
formed any other opinion, I fhould rather have formed it unfa-
vourably, than otherwile: [ merely afked him the queilion,
without any {ort of exhortation. - | '

(. No exhortation to tell the whole truth ?>—A4. No.

(). You did not make ufe of any alarm, as to the confequence
ot not giving information ?>—A4. No.

0. How long.did your converfation continue, before he
unbofomed himfelt ?—4. 1 was there a very fhort time altoge-
ther. '

Q. He craved your affiftance, did not he ?—-A4. At the latter
end ot the converfation he did. -

¢. You made him no promifes?—4. None at all.

Mr. szip. 0. Now tell us, Sir, exaétly, as near as you
can recollect, what was the converfation, was it refpeéting the
bill in queftion?—4. It was; on the g1ft of January, in.the
afternoon, I {aw Mr. Bennett in the Poultry Compter, 1 told
him I was extremely forry to fee him in that {ituation, fpeaking
of hi§ account having been over-drawn, he told me, that the
warrants

Mr. Kxowrys, another of the Prifoner’s Counfel.

Q. Endeavour to confine yourfelf, as nearly. as pofhible, to
that bill of gal. as conlcientioufly as you can.—4. I will
endeavour to do 1t.—Mr. Bennett oblerved to me, that there
were other {ecurities that would tully cover the account, I told
him we bad difcovered, that thofe fecurities were forged ; then,
{ays Mr. Bennett, I am a dead man, and I immediately added,
I fuppofe the bills are of the fame defcription,

Mr. Knowlys. At the time that we are {peaking of the indi-
vidual bill of gal., had it been out ot your hands {ometime ?—
A. No. '

" Mr. Knapp. Q. Did he give any anf{wer ?——4, He anfwered
yes, but he certainly was much confufed at the time I mentioned
the difcovery of the forgeries. | |

| Q. Now
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0. Now was this bill, I mentioned to you, one of the bills
on which this converfdaton took place P——A4, Yes, ‘this is our
bill-book, and here 1s my writing at the back of it; this bill
was in my pofleflion tor {everal days, I delivered it direéily 1o
Mr. Greglon; this 1s my name on it, in my hand-writing, I
put it there at the time the forgery was firft difcovered, Fe-
bruary the gth I wrote my name upon it, when I delivered it to
Mr. Greglon. - |
Mr. Fielding. Q. Had this bill rematned in your pofleffion,
or in the pofleflion of the houle, from the ume it was firft
brought in by Mr. Bennett?—d. Yes, not only fo, but we
always kept it from the time the forgery was firft difcovered,
it was in my cuftody, but before that, it was in the bill-drawer,
- Mr. Feeiding. (). There the bills lay, and in confequence
of fome fufpicion, you had converfation with him, and after-
wards delivered it to Mr. Greglon?—A4. Yes; as Mr. Ben-
~ nett had not depofited any money on their account, his account
was over-drawn, though we refufed to difcount them, they cer-
tainly would be an additional inducement to advance the money
~ he wanted. '

@. If Mr. Bennett had come to your fhop and depofited
thele bills, would you have difcounted them ?—A4. There was
no requeit whatever either to difcount them or to put them into
any mode of negotiation. ' |

JOHN GREGSON, fworn.

0. (Shewing him the bill ) When did you receive this bill from
the laft witne{fs?—A4. On the gth of February. "

Two Gentlemen were then called who depofed that they were
acquainted with Mr. Coflett’s hand-writing, and that the accept-
ance on the bill was not his hand-writing ; and another witnefs
depofed, that the body ot the bill was the hand-writing of the

prifoner, h
JOHN GRAVES, fworn.

. Do you know the prifoner ?-—4. Yes.
. Have you ever {een him write ?—4. Yes.
. How many times ?—A4. Several. ' |
. Who wrote that ? (Shewing him the bill, )—A. The pri.

foner at the bar. :
0. Look at that acceptance P—dA. That is the fame,

NASH.

S
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NASH, fworn.

1 am colle&or of taxes in Garden-ftreet, Whitechapel.

0. Do you know Mr. William Coflett, fugar-refiner?—A4.
Yes. : _ |

0. Do you know any other perfon of that name ?—.4. No, I
do not, _

Court to prifoner. Now is your time, Sir, to make your
defence. |

Prifoner. My Lord, I wifh to referve my cafe to my Coun-
fel ; with refpett to my defence, 1 find mylelf unable to make
any ; 1 truft therefore, you will permit my Counlel to make it
for me, - _ |

Court. Your Counfel can only {peak as to points of law and
examine your witnefles, |

Prifoner. 1 have nothing to {ay. | :

Mr. Fielding to Mr. Nafh. Q. You are well acquainted with
Mr. William Coflett ?—A4. Yes.

Q. Is he alive and well 7—4. I have not feen him this week.

Mr. Knapp. (. But, however, when you did {ee him, he
was fo?—A, Yes. -

Q. You have not heard of his deceale ?—A4. No.

Mr. Fielding. My Lord, on behalfof the unfortunate young
man at the bar, I beg leave to fubmit to your Lordfhip, that
the depolit of thefe papers in the hands of any banker in the
kingdom, I conceive, cannot be confidered as a publication in .
point of law, the publication in law always being attended with
that kind of notoriety which imports that the publication fhould
convert the whole inftrument into calh ; I only juft make this
obfervation. _

The prifoner called ten refpeétable witneffes, who gave him
an exceeding good charaéter, _ :

The learned Recorder fummed up the evidence, and the Jury
retired for half an hour, and returned with a verdié

NOT GUILTY.

N. B. This was on Wednefday afternoon, on Friday, atone
o’clock, he was put on his trial before another Jury, on another
indi&iment, as tollows: - |

THOMAS
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THOMAS BENNETT was indiéled for Jelonioufly
and falfly making, forging, and counterfeiting an Ac-
-ceptance to a certarn Bill of Exchange, dated Eden
Bridge, 8th january, 1797, with the name of I. Shaw,
thereto fubfcribed, directed to Mr. P. Thompfon,
Great fames-fireet, Bedford-Row, for the payment
of - 273l. to Mr. Thomas Bennctty or order, which
Jaid falfe, forged, and counterfeited acceptance is as
follows, viz.—Accepted P. T. and Co.” with inten-
tion to defraud Joun Bonp and BENjAMIN
Bonb. 5 |

4 fecond Count for uttering the fame, knowing it to be

forged, with the like intention.

A third and fourth Counts, for forging and uttering the
Jame, with intention to dr{fmud Parrick THoMP-
TR AE |

L s = Lk [

The Indictment opened; by Mr. Knarp, and the Cafe
| by Mr. Consr.

STEPHEN PATTERSHALL, fworn.

- Mr. Knapp. 2. You are clerk to Meflrs. Bond’s,” bankers ?
—A. Yes. |
Q. You know the prifoner, Mr. Bennett ?— A, Perfettly well.

Q. I believe he kept calh at your houfe?—4A4. Yes, in the
carly part of September laft. '

0. I believe he was recommended to your houle; by afriend
of Meflrs. Bond’s P—A4, He was.

Q. Do you remember any bills being brought to your houfe
by Mr. Bennett, and when ?—4. On the 1gth of January laft,
there were three bills of Exchange brought to Mr. Bond’s houfe,
this 1s one of them that was left at that time, they were entered
~ {hort in Mr. Bennett’s account. | | 8
0. Did he fay any thing at the time he left thofe bills with
you ?—A. 1 do not recolleét that he did.

Q. When did you fee Mr, Bennett again >— 4, On the 16th.
2 Q- What
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Q. What pafled then ?P—4, When Mr. Bennett came in, he

began to draw for fome money on us, he drew three drafts, to
the amount of between gool. and go0l.; 1 faid the account was
over-drawn, and defired him to walk into the counting-houfe,
I turned to his account in the ledger, and found it was, as 1 fup-
pofed, and I went and told him the account was much overdrawn;
he {feemed furprized, and faid, why, are not thofe bills I lefi with
you the other day, dilcounted, I told him no, it was not agree-
able to difcount them ; he preffed very much for the money,
and faid, that there were three other {ecurities which were then
in Mr. Bond’s hands, which would cover what he wanted :—
We had three India bonds. Mr. Bennett was very prefling for
the accomodation, as he faid it would only be for a few days;
we let him have between 300 and g4o0l, nearer 4o0l. I have the
checks, (looks at them) 3671. 19s. gd. there was no other con-
verfation at that time, , R

Q. 1f he had not left thofe bills, fhould you have let him have
the money ?——A. Itisimpofhible to fay what I thould have done,
but I rather think I fthould. ,

Q. When did you {ee Mr. Bennett again?—.4. On the g4th
of the {fame month,

(). Where did you {ee him ?—4. It was on another bufinefs.

Cﬁurz‘. Q. Did any thing pafs refpetting this bill, on the
24111, , |

Mr. Knapp. Q. You faw him at the Poultry Compter ?—
;a4 -

Q. Had you any conver{ation with him?—4. Yes., -

Mr. Felding. Q. When you vifited this young man, how
long did you continue your perfuafions with him, totell you the
truth ?~—4, 1 ufed no perfuafions to him. .

Mr. Knowlys., Q. Now tell us exatly what he faid ?—4, [
deplored Mr, Bennett’s fituation, that he fhould be in fuch a
place, and obferved, that he had confiderably over-drawn us;
he faid the bonds and warrants we had in our hands would cover
us from any lofs; I then told him, we had difcovered that the
‘warrants were forgeries, he then faid, it you know that, then [
am a dead man: Mr, Bennett was very much embarraffed and
agitated at the time he made that anfwer, 1 immediately added,
that 1 fuppofed the bills were of the fame delcription, and he
- fad they were ; he preffed me very much that thefe things fhould
not come forward, I told him it did not reft with me, I men-
tioned a perfonto him; and afked him it he owed him any thing,
and he told me 6ool.

LA

% Q Now



( €10} )

- Q. Now'take that note into your hand again, and ook at’the
mdurfcmem?--,J 1 behew it to be Mr. Bennett's hand-
wrmng

Q. Have ‘you ever fccn him write o Oh' yes, fre-
quently. |

(. Now look at that acceptance ?--- 4. I cannot {ay to that.

Mr. Feweldang. 0, You have told us very honourably, that
you rather think you thould have let him have had this cafh
without the bills ?---A4. Yes.

0. You would, on the 13th of January, when he brought
thofe bills ?---A. No at the time [ entered them, certamly not.

(. In faét, you dlr:i not gwe him credit for havmg pald 1n {o
much cafh, as appeared to{atisfy thefe bills ?---4. No."

(. Thote bills you had no idea of difcounting ?---4. No.

¢. You told him, it would not be very agreeable to dlfcount
them P---A4. Yes.

(. He told you, that the India Bonds which had been depo-
fited with you would cover the whole ?---A He faid they
would.

(0. He did not at all advert to thofe three bllls of exchange
which were depolited on the 15th 7---4. No.

Q. In faét, you did not difcount them, or had any intention
ot doing 1t ?-—-A Certainly not. | | -

Q. He left them there without making any requeﬂ: of any

‘money upon them ?—A. 1 do not recolleét pamcularly what
‘pafled when ‘he left them.

Q. Then we will go to the other day, when you obferved,
that the account was over-drawn : he {aid, that the India Bonds
would cover the account?—-4. Yes.

Q. Were thele bills, at any time, to your Lnowicdge, put
into any courle of negotiation ?---4. No.

0. He 10ld you, it you had difcovered that the notes were
forged, be was a dead man; he did not fay that he had any hand
in the forgery ?---4. No.

Mr. Juflice Buller. The queftion is, whether the legal pro-
perty in the bill was transtered by 1nd0rfement to the bankers
iﬁrnot . : _ _ Y 4 T A7 e

PATRICK THOMPSON, fworn.

Q. Where do you live _---A In Great James-ﬂreet Bed.
ford-row $ei
Q. Is there any other perfon in that nmghbourhood of your
name ?---.4. Nogne that I know of. |

' Q The
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Q. The direétion oftlns bill‘is to you, 1s it your WIiting Peee
A. Not the leaft like it. .

0. You have fome Lnowledge of the prifoner ?---A I have
feen him once or tw mc. .

_]A '\/II‘ S LAYTON fwm n.

Sie Iwe 1 Lime {ireet, London. |
> Qv Do you know the pnfoner P -A ‘He was formerly c]erk

to me.
0. Do you know ‘ns hand-writing ?--- 4. 1 do.

Q. Tell me firlt of all, Sir, (look at that acceptance) 1s that
the prifoners hand- writing 2--2A, It is like his manner of hand=
writing; I cannot take' upon me to fay pofitively.’

- Q. Upon the whole, do you believe 1t 1s, or do you believe
it is not 7= 4. ‘I réally-‘believe it is.

0. Look at that at the back, the mdorfement P A, That 18, .
I believe his hand-writing. | |

Mr. Feelding. Q. Thisunhappy young man was clerk to you‘

and your brother feveral years P—A. Yes, we par(ed from him
and W1fhed h1m well 4 T/ze IJZEZ m:zd e '

'Y

“ Eden Brldge 8th January, 1797.
“ One month after date, pay to Mr. Thomas Bennett or order,

b 273] and place {ame to the account of your humble fervant
“]. Shaw.” Accepted P. T. and Co.

“ To Mr. 3 Thompfon Great james ftreet, Bedford.row

' Cou'rt to Pﬂﬁner ‘Would ydu Tfay, any thmg for yourfe]f or
do ou leave it to your Counfel _
} rtfoner. I Ieave it to mjw counfel

Mr. Fielding. ' My Lord, 1 have a number of refpe&able
wnneﬂes who a peared heﬁe theother day to his charatter,

Court, Well call them. :

‘The prifoner called ten very refpeétable thneffes who gave
hlm a moit unexceptionable charatter..
~Court fﬂggmy Gentlemen, the queftion in thiscafe is, what
is the effeét of the evidence which you have heard ; it has been
proved to you, that the bill in queftion has been depoﬁted by
the prifoner with Meflrs. Bond's, and from the tranfaétions that
pafled between them, there cannot be a doubt for what purpofe
1t was depoﬁted it was entered in the prifoners account, and
left in their cuftody for the purpefe.of gammg credit; and it is

B 2 provcd
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proved, thatat the diftance of only three days, the prifoner came
back again tothe thop of the Bond’s, for between goo and 400l.
which by his converfation then, he thought himielf entitled to,
on account of the bills and warrants which he had {o depofited,
for he had no other reafon, but there they were for dilcount ;
however, they did not chufe to difcount them when afked :
thén the next queition is, if thele bills were depofited for the
?urpofe of getting credit to himfelf, whether it was not done
or the purpole of defrauding the Meflrs, Bond’s. No man de-
pofits bills as mere idle tales, ‘that he is to make no ule of, it
was done to increafe his credit with thefe bankers, and if fo, it
was done to defraud them: the witnels was afked by the counfel
for the prifoner, whether if he had not brought the bills, he
would have advanced him the money, and he fays, he thinks he
fhould, but that does not go to any point: the queltion here his,
firft whether the acceptance was forged ; and {econdly with what
intent he depofited thefe bills with the bankers : it is no matter
whether he Ead a perfonal credit with them ‘to the amouut of
the bills, or not; the queftion is, what did he intend at the time
he depofited the bills: his intention was, to have got money
upon them, and if that 1s not an intention to defraud, I know
not what 1s; what the witnefs might have done, whether he had
thofe bills or not, does not at all affe¢t the prifoner’s intentions
at the time.  As to the forgery itlelt, youhave firft the evidence
of a gentleman, who formerly ftood in the charafter of mafterto
this young man: it ‘is apparent he aniwered with reluétance,
but, perhaps, the force of truth, drew from him the laft anfwer
he gave; he was defired to fay if he knew the prifoner’s hand-
writing; at firft he fays, itislikeit, but it is'not quite his ufual
charafter ; no man who fetsdown to forge the hand of another,
will, by de{i%ln, ufe his own charafter of writing, he certainly
will vary his hand as much as he poffibly can, and that circum-
ftance of its being like his, but not exaétly, does not prove,
that it is not his.—Now obferve what is his anfwer to the other
queflion, and that 1s, the only evidence you can have in cafes
like this; what is your belief, you can only by poflibility have
his belief in fuch a cale, unlefs it is out of the prifoner’s own
mouth; you muft know, that the only way of proving a man’s
' hamzi...writin%l 18, from the opinion of thofe who have {een him
write, on other occafions; -he has at laft, with reluétance told
you, that it was. -Gentlemen, you obferve, the firft witnefs
goes to the prifoner in the Poultry Compter; when the priloner
18
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s firlt to'd his account 1s aver-drawn, his anfwer 1s; the war-
rants will cover it; but fays the witnefs, we havedilcovered that
- the warrants are forged: now it is neceflary to-attend to the
conduét of the prifoner, his aniwer is, if you know that then I
-am a dead man.. The counfel on the part of the prifoner afked
the witnefs, whether, 'in this expreflion, he at all adverted to
him{élf.  Certainly not. The firft part of the converfation ref-

efted only the warrants, and when he faid they were found to
Ee forged,” the prifoner fand I am a dead man: but the conver-
fation did “not flop' there, for fays he, 1 told him, I fuppofed
- the bills were of the fame defcrlptaon and he faid they were;
therefore you fee, out of his own mouth, when he finds there is
a difcovery, he acknowledged they were forged, and then he
“goes on prefling them not to bring thefe matters forward, and
holding a converfation that tetally excludes every idea of - his
not knowing they were forged therefore, gentlemen, unlefs

thefe witnelles are perjured in their te{hmony, I cannot draw

any other conclufion from the evidence they have given, but
that you are ‘botind to'find the pnfoncr Guilty.

3 ghe jury retired for hdlf an hour, an.d returned wuh a ver-
i

i GUILTY" DLEATH Aged—23;

Mr. Fuflice Buller Effeﬂ' 'the-prifoﬁér." o

T/wfazdﬁufone? THOMAS BENNETT was alfo
arra?gned on z'/w /o!lawmg Indzﬁmmts, vz,

For forgmg and utterwa @ Ball q/ Excfm%ge, dated

- 234" fanuary, 17975 with the name of William Cof-
lett theveto fubferibed, drawn by one William Coflett,
and dirveiled to Thomas Bennett, ' Stock Lxchange

Coffec-houfe, for 1 50! to the order of fard William
; Co/lett,
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Coflett, ten weeks afier date, w?z:/z intent 1o dgfmud
Wzllmm Coflett. ' -

For fd?‘giﬁg and utz,ferzfng'_1_d_TVa'rmnf,' for ,c;’_dz'very of
Goodsy - with-the mame ~§. 'B. B. Cobbe;, and T.
Whitchead, thereunto fubfcribed, marked No. 445,

. @ated 17th - Fune, 17965 to. Fames Laytbn' or his
affigns, by Indorfement thereon, twenty bfzgs of Billg
Peppery fold to the fard Fames Layton, by the Eafi-

- India Company, with intention to dcfmud _IOHN_

_ BonND and BrnjaMiN BoNnp. '

For forging and uitering -a Warrants for delivery of
Goods, with the name F. B. B. Cobbey and T.
Whitehead, thereto fubfcribed, marked 443, dated
17th Fune, 1796, to Fames- Layton, or his aﬁgns,r

by Indorfement thereon, five bags of White Pepper,
fold to the faird Fames Layton, by the Eafl-India
Company, with intention to defraud Jonn Bonp

~and BenjamiN BoNbp.

.Forforgmg and uttsrmg a Warrant, for delwery of
Goods, with the names of F. B. B. Cobbe, and T.
Whitehead, thereto fubfcribed, marked 444, dated

“agth Funcy 1796, to Fames Layton, or his affigns,
by Indorfement thereon, 20 Bags of Billa Pepper,
- fold to the faid Fames Layton, by the Eaft-India

| Company, with mtmtzm to defmud Jonx BOND

and BExjAMIN Bonnb.
' For
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For forging and uttering an acceptance on'a Bill of
Exchange, dated Maidftone, Fanuary, 7th 1797,

with the name Fames Ainflie, thereto fubfcribed and
direéled to Fames Smithy Efy. New Lloy’s Coffee-
houfe, for 260l. to ‘James Henry Wilfon, Efq. or
order, fixty days afier date, which acceptance is as
Sfollows :—* Fames Smith,” with intention to defraud
Joun Boxp and BenjamiN Bonb.

For forging and uttering an Acceptance on a bill of
Exchange, dated Maidflone, Fanuary 21ift, 1797,
with the name F. O. Blake, thereto fubfcribed, di-
reéted to Thomas Powell, Efg. New Lloyd’s Coffec-
houfe, London, for 250l. to his the faid ¥. O.
Blake's own order, three days afterﬁg}zt,. w/iic:lz Ac-

ceptance is as follows: ¢ Accepted Fanuary 23d,
¢ Thomas Powell,” with intention to defraud Joun
- Bonp and BExjamin Bonb.

For forging and uttering a certain Indorfement, in the
name of William Cofletty on a certain Bill of Ex-
change, dated 23d Fanuary, 1797, purporting to be
drawn by one William Coflett, for the payment of
1500, tothe oyder of the faid William Coflett, which
Indorfement is as follows: “ William Coflett,” with
intention to defraud the faid Wirriam CosrLeTr.

N. B.When fentence of death was paffed on the capital convitts,
Mr. Recorder, alluding to this prifoner, when fpeaking of the
diffipation of the age faid thus, * this has caufed the commiffion

‘6 Of
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“ of acrime by a perfon, whofe conne&:on and f'tuanon in
¢« life, whofe education, whofe knowledge of the world, fhould
“ have placed him above ‘the reach of every temptation, and
* have prevenied him from committing a crime, ‘which muft
** always be feverely punithed, as it tends to deftroy the fecumy
. wlnch the law has provlded for the property of individuals.”

'u|_
v all
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THE Intention of this Work, is to prefent to the
Public an opportunity of purchafing for Tygrez-
PEncE oNLY, any principal Trial complete, through-
out every Seflion at the Old Bailey, in fwo or three
Days after the Trial 1s ended.

If any extraordinary Cafe fhould happen, and prove
exceedingly long, we may, perhaps, be under the ne-
ceflity of printing fuch Trial in two Numbers, but
that we imagine, will happen very feldom.

The laft Number of every Seflion will contain a
Brief Account of -all the Trials for Larcenies,~the
Names.;of .the. Priloners, with the Senctence paffed
on each, together with every Circumftance that oc-
curred on {fuch Trials, worthy Notice; and alfo an
INDEX, thewing 'in what Page to find every Pri-
joner's Trial, moiicsdosluo) |

The Work fhall be well printed in O&avo, on good
Paper, and comprifed in as few Numbers as poffible,
(according to the Numberof principal Trials that may
happen) and’ fo- contrived, that at the End of-every

Year, or Seffion, they may be bound together.

The authenticity of it cgnnot be for a Moment
doubted, as Mr. Hopcson, (who takes them in
Short-Hand) has been publicly known in that Profef-
fion, for upwards of Twenty Years, Eleven of which
he has been Short-hand Writer to the Old Bailey,

This Plan, on account of its cheapnefs and com.-
plevenefs, we'hope will not fail of giving univerfal ¢
Satisfactions = O,
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WILLIAM NOAH & JOSEPH JESCOURT,
' FOR

Houle-breaking.

e S

WILLIAM NOAH and JOSEPH JESCOURT
were indiéled for burglarioufly and Sfelonioufly break-
ing and entering the dwelling-houfe of CUTHBERT
HivrtoN, about the hour of three in the night, on
the 3d Day of February laft, and burglarioufly feal-
ing therein 3000lb. weight of leady value 23/, lus
property ; and

FRANCES GUNNING was indiéted for felonioufly

receving the fame, knowing the fame to have been

Jtolen.

CUTHBERT HILTON, fworn.

LIVE at No. 15, Princes-fireet, Weftminfter, 1 am a
plumber; I loft a great quantity of lead, either on the
night of the 13th, or the morning of the 14th of February laft,
from my fhop, it was built fince the houfe was built, but the
roof of the hop abuts againit the dwelling-houfe ; in the morn.
ing, when I arofe, 1 was informed of the robbery, and I went
over immediately to Noah's houfe, he lived oppolfite to me ;
when he came home, he came over to me, he feemed to pity
me very much, he {aid he had no lead by him ; I went on pur-
ofe to defire him to give me information if any lead came to
e fold, he promifed me he would: one of the pieces of lead

was found in a cart, on the Saturday following, I donot know
| C whole
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whofe cart it wasy the pgifoner Noah was with, the cart, With
other perfons, 1. was nearinine at night,: it wasidriving out of
Princes-ftreet, going to Great George-ftreet, Noah and Jefcourt
were with the cart, there were goolb. weight of lead in the
cart, I believe that is my property, I do not pretend to {wear
to a {heet of lead ;1 L faw the marks of a chifel, or fomqthii3$_
which forced the fhop-door open, that was the next morning."

Mr. GURNEY, Prifoner’s Counfel.

Q. You go from one dgor into 3 yard, to {go into the door of
the dwelling-houfe P-4,  Yes, there is:a {pace of about five
feet.

Q. You did not fee-either of the prifoner’s driving the cart ?
——-A, 1 did not.
Vie 4 - ' SR 5

2 HENRYCOOPER, o s

Iam apprentice tothe profecutor; I locked the fhop-door the
evening before the robbery, on the Tuefday morning it was
broke open, 1 mifled a great quantity of lead, and I can fwear
to this piece of lead, this 1s a ciftern head, .

WILLIAM SKILLWELL
Called on his Recognizance, and not fzppéa}'?;ﬁé::?fis‘_
Recognizance was ordered to bé eftreated.” 4"

A JEW WITNESS, fworn.

On Thurlday, the gd of February laft, the prifoner Noah
came into my fhop, and afked me if I dealt in old iron, I told
ves, and he laid out fifteen fhillings and fix-pence in iron ; af-
terwards he told me, he had fomething that would put a few.

o

pounds in my pocket, '

0. Was you an intimate friend of Mr. Noah’s ?—-41}701
only accidentally ; I afked him what it was, and he told me if 1
would go with him and a cart and horfe, he would .{Hﬁw me

where the lead lay; I went there between nine a d ten,
dh {h ¢ =gy 4 I.ﬁ..k-. - " *w ' 3 u]d.}r L B ::'t'ﬁ
and he thewed me thelead, and afked me what I could afford to
give tor it ; he afked me if I thought I could afford to give ten
thillings a hundred, and I told him I could, it was worth three
guineas a hundred, this was new: 1 went between eight and
ten, and watched for him, and I'took a cart with me, 1 did not -
PRy 5 Ca T nie] CIEL i * DI UNT M50 L aGiiiigie? 5 D10 94
take it away tHat evening, I went to find out who the profecutor
ION:2 1IN CG & < X ol : . . I g _w*agj.:

/
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was, 1 knew where he lived, but did not know his name; I
faid I would come on Saturday night for it ; 1 went to the pub.
lic-houfe and [ent for the profecutor;; tp give him information
of the lead : on Saturday evening, about eight, 1 went with a

cart, and loaded it into the cart ; hefaid he would look out
for an officer, for he knew them all; the lead, ecart and hotfe,
were taken pofleflion of. | ST

“Mr. Gurney. (.- What book was you {wornon?—4, On
the book of the officer. -

0. 'Was your hat on ?—4.  Yes. -

0. 1f 1 underfland you right, your mode of getting your
living is, by traverfing Weftminfter, for old iron ?—A. Not
Weltminiter alone, hat

@. You are no particular acquaintanee.of Noah’s >—A4. I have
' boﬁght iron of him. - _

0. ‘Having no particular acquaintance with you, he direétly
atténded you to the houfe, and faid it belonged to that gentle-
man ? A. Yes,

Q. Was there any reward offered for this ?— 4. Not to my
knowledge. L R

. I'dare fay you never heard ot any reward for a bur
--——Q—-A. No, Iyd);d not, ’ i

(. Was you never examined here betore ?—4. No.

0. Nor any where elfe ?7——4. No. -

Court, to Profecutor. Q. Did this witnefs at any time apply
to you ?P~~A4. He did, on Saturday, about two in the afternoon,
he fent for me to Prince’s-ftreet, and gave me an information
about my lead, and I went and got two officers, and the Jew -
was to give a fignal when the cart was loaded, he was coming to
tell me, but we had gone out before, and met the cart.

ISAAC SOLOMONS, fworn.

Q. You are of the Jewifh religion ?—4. Yes. |

I live in Roper's-’-buildings, Houndi{ditch ; on Thurfday
morning, I faw Noah go up into the houfe where the lead lay,
I faw the lead, I was very much fhocked when I {aw the lead.

JOHN MASTERMAN, fuworn.

I am a patrole; I faw a cart coming, and fome men, but I
could notdifcern them in the dark ; I {aw Noah :here.

The prifoner made no defence,

A _ WitnefJes
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| W:’mﬁ; to the Charaller of Noak.
CHARLOTTE ANDREWS, fworn.

I live in the houfe of the prifoner Noah, and was there at
the time the robbery was f{aid to be committed, which was on
Saturday, the gd of February, I was a lodger. _

. ,Ve;hat time did you fge the prifoner Noah ?—4. 1 faw
him at feven, and about a quarter after four, in bed, and his
wifewith him; Iowed him fome money, and I went to pay him :
I had a quarter of an bour’s converfation with him. I am an un-
~ fortunate gir), and I owed Mr. Noah a great deal of money,
and I was obliged to go out at that time, to get him fome, and
1 came home a little more than a quarter after four, he let me
in, he was undrefled and 1n bed ; when he came to let me in,
he had nothing but his fhirt on; he went to bed again, and was
afleep before I came out of his room, there was not the leaft
appearance of his having been drefled. I went to bed after
that, myfelf. 3

- The prifoner Noah called two witneffes to his charatter,

The other two prifoners were not put on their defence.

WILLIAM NOAH, GUILTY,~—DEATH.  Aged 43.
JOSEPH JESCOURT,——Not Guilty.
- FRANCES GUNNING,——Not Guilty.

Lord Kenyon tried the prifoners.

THE
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ELIZABETH OCONNER,
| " FOR

Stealing Ten Yards of Printed Cotton.

—m_ e =

ELIZABETH O'CONNER was :ndifted for fe-
Adonioufly flealing on the 17th of Aprily ten yards of
printed cotton, walue 30s.; the property of Joux
Parrick, the Elder, and Joun Patrick, the
Younger, privatelyin their fhop.

JOHN PATRICK,Fthe Elder, fworn.
¥ AM a linen-draper, No. 13, Mar);-lé-bohe-ﬂreet, myfelf

- and fon are partners; on the 17th of this month, I loit ten
yards of printed cotton, value thirty fhillings, it was between
tour and five in the afternoon, I cannot fay exaétly the time, I
was in the fhop myfelf, I wasvery bufy ferving another cuftom-
er, I heard the fhopman talk to her, and the went out of the
fhop; he took her by the arm, and the two pieces of printed
cotton fell on the floor, I did not fee them fall.

EDWARD PRICE, fworn.

I am fhopman to the laft witnefs; I faw the prifoner in our
fhop, the 17th of this month, fhe afked for a piece for a gown,
1 thewed her fome different patterns ; fhe did not buy,

- . When fhe was in your fhop did you fee her take any

thing?—4. No, I followed her, I afked her if {he wanted a
- gown, if none I had fhewed her would fuit her, and I alked her

to walk back to the fhop, I took hold of herarm. .
Q. Then
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Then you did not follow her on {ulpicion that {he had roh-
bed you?—A4. No I took hold of her arm, and thefe two gown.-

pieces tell from it [ Produced and depﬂﬁd to.) She picked them

up and came back to the thop; I afked her if the had taken any
more, f{he laid thele on the counter, they are valued at thirt

Ihxllmgs they are worth more money, they have been in Sxﬁuﬁi{
cuftedy ever fince.

WILLIAM ‘SIMMS, fworn.

I am a peace officer, Mr. Pdtl‘le dehvcred this to me,
( Produces the two preces of cotion.)

Prisongrls Defence. i

i

I went in to buy a gown, I know nothmg of tal-.mg the
tIungs--—-—-- |

. Ty T \
i W S P

I"

" { : : | ¢ r“. I 4o S 43 : .f" ‘-1
f.! a2 ~ ' "
1;1 ! 3 ]DEA TH‘!!} LA A i
= - B ¥ i - = 5 M
i il
Lol o = - - w = P~
F f 1r t‘ v f . |
d ; B“ e - s
bt
Lar Ke@*on trtecf the pn oner.
i | f - 1 . % -y
1 -' T "‘ ‘.F‘f in : . f h
| 2204 # ':-' = - QETD-E .
] , |
v i [ .
‘ . S8 * I
: (101300 " Ji5
% i q l o A r
4 4 - i 5 Ld & -t
L . . § g - - -
] +1 1 {Il‘,I o
I A
i t -i.l. o
4 .!.'
.
' - *.l'll | sias
i ]
A ¢ 3 110 | ii'tj‘)
>
| 4
=
¥ 5 b o
f CIONYGONT b 3
: ;:i} - b ';' fﬁ
! ¥
i - # & #h v 'n.i
! .j f_..u Lﬂ\-" i L ‘
r i -t--l_\q- .l':!' " { l-‘- ‘_‘
.3 J' i - is :]"-" seid -
i ' -y L ..:_.-:q_.
| 'I.'} 1 i :"‘-ﬂ"__, . .Ei.i- s 5
, a :
o - 3rhir & : ‘ ‘*}w}_
g o
’ 'H:,!' ' 4 by

THR



THE
f Mo T e g S
JrOEH N TV
For a Highway Robbery.

JOHN TULL was indiflfdfarfelam'ozﬂy affaulting .
GeoreE Lk, on the King's-highway, on the 29th
day of March laft, and putting him in fear, and felo-
‘nioufly taking from his perfon and againft his will,
ten pair of cloth trowfersy value 505. the property of
Parmenus Hiceins, and onelinen bag, value 6d.

the property of EDWARD LEE.

GEORGE LEE, fworn.

Court., Q. H OW old are you, my boy?—4. Goingon
| my 13th. . '

Q. Do you know what it 1s to takean oath?—4. Yes, I have
taken my oath tour times; Iam {on of Edward Lee, a taylor, I
was going to Mr. Higgins's, in Hemlock.court, the 29th of
March, between feven and eight, Ibrought ten pair of trowfers
to Mr, Higgins’s, and in Lincolns-Inn-Fields, there were four
men, who followed me from Hemlock-court, and one of them
ftopped me, they fhoved me from one to the other, 1 faid no.
thing to them; one man begun to pull the bundle, that wasg
Tull; he flaid about a minute, it was under a lamp, he began
{wearing, I.thought it was better to let go, they pulled it from
me, the three men turned down the ltreet, 1 never loft fight of
‘them till they ran down the {treet, and this gentleman alfo: it
was a bluftering dark night, a Saturday night, but I am fure of
the prifoner, he ftaid with me about a minute, I followed him

as well as I could.
" ‘ D (. Did
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0. Did you lofe fightof him?—.4+ No, he dropped the things,
a young man followed him, he was about five or fix yards be-
fore me, when they ftopped him.

Prifoner. Q. Did you ever {ee me before ?P— 4. No,

JOHN LEACH, fwora.

I ftopped the prifoner, between feven and eight, at the bot.
tom of Lincoln’s-Inn-Fields, nobody purfued him but me, 1
was going on my mafter’s bufinefs; I heard the boy cry out, I
thought fomebody was beating him, he then cried, * Stop thief,”
and he threw down the bundle, and turned out of the main road,
1 faw him throw the bundle trom his thoulders, I laid hold of
him, and he ftruck me, I took him by the arms and gave him a
good fhake, 1 told him he had robbed the boy, he lgaid he had

not. _
HENRY OWKES, fworn.

I received the prifoner, and this bundle, I have kept it ever
fince. (Produced and depofed to.) |

0. To Leack. . Are thefe the things you picked up P—A4. Yes,

0. To George Lee. You cannot {wear to thefe things your-
{elf 7——A, Yes, thefe are the things that were taken from me.

PARMENUS HIGGINS, fworn.

Thefe are my property in truft, I delivered them to the boy,
his father works tor me. |

EDWARD LEE, fworn.

1 am father to the boy, I fent fome property by him, and
thefe are the things he brought back to me,

PrRisSONER’S quence.“

Coming through Lincoln’s-Inn-Fields, I heard a noife, and 1
went to {ee, but I never faw the boy in my life:—I have no wit-
nefles, 1 did not think I fhould be tried to day. '

GUILTY DEATH, Aged—26.

Mr. .Baran Hotkam tried the prifoner,
: THE
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ELIZABETH BENNETT,

FOR
4

Stealing Twenty Yards of Muflin, &ec.

M ———

ELIZABETH BENNETT was indiéted for feloni-

oufly flealing on the 18th of March laft, twentyyards
and an half of muflin, value 51l. 125; three yards

and three-quarters of muflin, value 11l. 4s5; eight
yards and three-quarters of linen clothy value 1l. 15;
one yard of ditto value 15; one calicoe peiticoat, value
1l; one pair of flockings, value gs; and three yards

of calicoe, value gs; the property of Joseru Por-
TALy in his dwelling-houfe. |

JOSEPH PORTAL, fwarn.

‘][ AM alinen-draper; the prifoner was my fervant, about three
months: I was out of town, and the firft article I miffed,
was the plain muflin; I told all my fervants 1 had loft it, one
of my journeymen had gone away ill, the other and the porter,
1 gave warning to ; they gave me fome information,

Court. Q.1 only want to know how you found your pro-
perty?—A. After my fervants were gone away, I told the pri-
foner fhe muft be the thief, and I then taxed her with having
flolen thefe things out of the fhop, I told her to let me fee her
box open and what was in it, or 1 would get a conftable and
break 1t open; fhe criéd and faid’ the would go up fairs and

D s open



( 30 )

open the box before me: we went up ftairs, and one of the
journeymen with me, the prifoner opened the box, and in the
box I found a calicoe petticoat, nothing elfe at that time; af-
terwards, I got a {earch warrant.
. How foon was that afterwards?—4 Direélly. |

| . Have you at any other time and place found any thing

elfe’—A4. 1 found the cloth.—The brother-in-law, on my
{fearching his houfe, brought a box to me on the {fame evening,
the 18th of March, which contained the things in the indict-

ment.
' Mr. GurNEY Prifoner’s Counfel.
0. Have you any partner in your bufine{s?—4. No.
RICHARD PRITCHARD, fworn.

I am fervant to Mr. Portal; all I know 1s, I 'faw the things
taken from her box, I know nothing ot any other things.

Q. Do you happen to know, that that petticoat belonged to
the profecutor ?——A4. I cannat fay I do.

RICHARD FISKE, fworn.

I am a peace offiter belonging to Worfhip-fireet office ; on
Saturday, the 18th of Marc%n, %’Lr Portal came for a fearch
warrant to the ofhice, 1t was given to me to ferve, and I went to
the houfe of the profecutor, Mr. Portal, there I found part of
the property 1n the indiétment, 1 have the petticoat in my cufto-
dy, but he found 1t; he found three handkerchiefs and pock-
“ets, and a pair of ftockings, and different things in the prifo-
ner's box, that Parker, the brother-in-law, brought to the pro-
{ecutor’s houle, betore this witnels came; there was twenty
yards of muflin, and the other things inthe indi€tment.
o Q. Have you kept thele things grom that time to this?—A4.
es.
Q. Was the calicoe petticoat delivered to you?—4. Yes.
Mr. Gurney o Mr. Portal. Q. 1 believe, when you difco.
vered the petticoat, you told the prifoner, thatif fhe difcovered
where the other things were, it would be better forher?—4, I
never told her any {uch thing, nothingat all like 1t; I took her
befure a Magiftrate, in Worfhip-ftreet, and there fhe burft into
tearsand confefled the whole. | | |

i

Q. Was what fhe faid before the Magiitrate, taken down in
writing ?——A, 1 donot know. A A5

RICHARD
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RICHARD ROBERTS, fworn,

I am no bufinels at 2ll, I faw that box brought by Parker,
and that was brought from Mr., Portal’s to the Magi{trates, in
Worthip-ftreet, 1 faw 1t opened, and its contents, and they
were {worn to by Mr. Portal, that 1sall I have to fay,

Court to Profecutor. . Now, Sir, look at the twenty yards
and an half ot mullin, can vou {wear that tQ be your’s?—u.
There is my own hand-writing upon it.

0. What is the value ot that, how much did you give forit?
—A. It has been cut {ince fhe had 1t, 1t was in a whole piece,
part of 1t 1s taken off, this piece coft me {ix guineas; thele
twenty yardsand an half coft me five guineas. | e

0. You tell me, that is the muflin that was brought back 1in
the box, which the owned to: what 1s the value ot that ? —A4.

Five pounds twelve fhillings.

Idgci You gavefive pounds twelve fhillingsforit?—A4. Certainly
id. _

(. Now then, there are three yards and three-quarters of
muflin, 1s that yours?—4. Yes. |

(. Is there any mark upon that?—A4., No, it has been
walhed, *

Q. What is the value of that?—.A4. One pound, and one
pound tour fhillings tor the three yards and an half. -

Q. Look generally at the other things and fay, whether you
believe them to be yours?—4. Every one of them.

Mr. Gurney. Q. All the articles, excepting the petticoat,
were found in the box which Parker brought to your houfe?—

A - Xon, 2

Q. For inftance, thefe twenty yards and an half of muflin,
was found 1n that box?—A4. It was. |
- Q. I take 1t, there is'no article befides, of more value than?
one pound four fhillings?—4. No. T
0. Thele pieces of muilin being in pieces, are not of the
{ame value, andas you did not fee them taken, isit not poflible
for you to know whether they were taken in one piece or more ?
—A. I cannot fay, =
0. Theretore by whom{oever they were taken, they inight be
taken fome at one time, and fome at another?——4. They
might. P ' b
5; You had an exceeding good opinion of the perfon at that
time?——A. Yes |
- Prifoner. 1 have nothing to fay. P,
Gualty of flealing to the value of thirty nine Jlallings.  Aged oo~
ranfported Seven Years, e -
. THE
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HENRY BUTLER,
-Houfe-breaking. |
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HENRY BUTLER was indidled for fdaniouﬂyr
breaking and entering the dwelling-houfe of STepnEN

LooSELEY, his wife and others being therein, abous
the hour of feven in the night, on the 1oth of April,

and felonioufly flealing thereiny one filver watch, one
fleel chainy and two metal feals, value 41. his pro-

perty.

STEPHEN LOOSELEY, fworn

I am a butcher, I live in Alder{gate-ftreet; on the 1oth of
April, I was at home, I loft my watch before feven at night, it
was taken from the parlour behind my fhop, I was in bed; the
conftable, whofe name is Hart, brought this watch back, I
was called up. | | .

CHARLOTTE WADE, fworn.

-1 am fervant to the laft witnefs, thefe men came 1n for two
fheep’s melts, by half-paft fix, when he came in firft I told him
we had none, he afked if we thould have {fome, I told him we
fhould not, but perhaps there might be fome in Long-lane : he
told me it was for a child to put to his feet, he went out, and mn

about ten minutes after, he came back and opened the door and
| took
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took the watch, I heard the chain lap up, and I heard him fhut
the door; the watch hung on the mantle fhelf in the parlour, be-
hind the thop; I heard the chain rattle, and I heard him (hut
the parlour door, and he wentout of the fhop direétly. |

Q. Is there any Othér_door‘mto the fhep?—A4. No.

Q. Is there any other door_ into the parlour?—4. No.

. Then he could not go into the parlour without going inte
the thop 7—A. No. e
- Q. Where was you when you heard this chain rattle?—4. I
was backwards, I went to the door, and faw an old gentleman,
and acquainted him, and he went after them, his namé was Mr.
Porter : I ftaid behind, the prifoner was carried direétly to the
compter ; the conftable (Hart) came back again and brought the
watch,

0. Now, my girl, tell me a little how the houfe was, was the
door fhut or not >—A4, It was fhut.

Q. Wasitalpringlock?—A4, Yes.

Q. Are you fure it was fhut?—4. Yes.

Q. Was the [hop door fhut or open?—4. It was open, the
man opened the fhop door, my mafter’s man, he went out; I
}"_aw the watch hang in the parlour before, I have not feen it
ince.

————— PORTAL, fworn.

On the 1oth of April, I was going by this houfe and the girl
attended, I went atter the man, and collared him, when he
came to the end of Duke-ftreet , I faw him pull the watch out of
“his pocket, he fhifted the watch, 1 told a man to aflift me, I
brought him to the fthop, and took him to the compter, at the
compter door, the conftable took the watch from him, and I
defired the conitable to come to the profecutor’s houfe, and he
{aid the watch was his property, the conftable has the watch,

HART, fworn.

' I am a conftable, Itook this watch from the prifoner, I took

it to Mr, Looleley’s. |
- Mr. Loofeley. This is my watch, my name is on it at full
length, the value is three pounds.

PRISONER'S
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PRIsoNER_'s Defence.

The old gentleman took me, he pulled out the chain{rom the
watch, it was my own watch, I was a running home about my
bufinefs, I had fent a porter home with {fome meat, he faid 1t
was his watch,. and if I would give hum the watch, he would let
RS O o itver s ol ooy St U RN £lg ¢ | _

Court to Porter. Q. Did you offer him, that if he would give
you the WatCh, you would |'E[ him .gu?-—-—A. Never laid that.

Q. The watch was your's’—d4. Never,

e
GUILTY—DEATH.

Mr, Fuflice Buller tried the prifoner.

- THE
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ADVERTILS EMENT.

THE Intention of this Work, is to prefent to the

Public an opportunity of purchafing for TurEE-
PENcE oNLY, any principal Trial complete, through-

out every Seffion at the Old Bailey, in {wo or three
Days atfter the Trial 1s ended. '

If any extraordinary Cafe thould happen, and prove
exceedingly long, we may, perhaps, be under the ne-
ceflity of printing fuch Trial in two Numbers, but
that we imagine, will happen very f{eldom.

The laft Number of every Seflion will contain a
Brief Account of all the Trials for Larcenies, the
Names of the Prifoners, with the Sentence pafled
on each, together with every Circumftance that oc-
curred on fuch Trials, worthy Notice; and alfo an

INDEX, fhewing in what Page to find every Pri-
{foner’s Trial.

The Work fhall be well printed in Oétavo, on good
Paper, and comprifed in as few Numbers as poflible,
(according to the Number of principal Trials that may
happen) and fo contrived, that at the End of every.
Year, or Seflion, they may be bound together.

- The authenticity of it cannot be for a Moment
doubted, as Mr. Hopcson, (who takes them in
Short-Hand) has been publicly known in that Profef-
fion, for upwards of Twenty Years, Eleven of which
he has been Short-hand Writer to the Old Bailey.

This Plan, on account of its cheapnefs and com.
pletenefs, we hope will not fail of giving univerfal

Satisf; .
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TOHN CHRISTIE,

FOR THE WILFUL MURDER OF

WILLIAM BLAKE

JOHN CHRISTIE was indidted for the wilful
murder of WirLrLiam Bi AKE,

The Cafe opened by Mr. F1 PLDING.

THOMAS PRITCHARD, fworn.

Mr. Knowlys. Q. ]I BELIEVE you are a midthipman mrthe
imprefs fervice ?—4. Yes.
0. On the 2g9th of March; had you any command to go on
the imprels fervlce s Ihad
l&ow many had.you.on that fervice P—4, Five,
Was the deccafed one of thofe five P—<4. He was.
. What time did you fee the prifoner ?—-4. About five,
. Where were your men ?—A4. My men were at that time
taklng fome refrefbment at E pubhc-houfe the King’s Arms,
I was
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I was at the door, and {eeing .the prifoner, I cried out Al
Talk, which is a word we ufe to mufter our men together, they
all followed me out except John Thomas, who was one of them,
he ftaid behind to pay tor fome bread and cheefe which they had,
the prifoner hearing us behind him, and hearing the prefs word,
which he underftood very well, he inftantly turned round and
prefented his piftol to me, I inftantly drew back. |

Q. Before he prefented the piftol to you, had you faid no.-
thing to him ?—A. No, Sir.

0. Had you done any thing to him ?—4. No, Sir, I was
walking on the fame road as he did, he was before me, he turned
round and prefented a piftol, and faid he would fhoot the firft
man that came a ftep nearer-to him ; I-then begged to {peak a
few words to him, which he granted, I afked him his name and
what thip he belonged to, he-faid his name was Chriftie, be-
Jonging to the Young Wilhiam : he walked ‘backward with his
* face towards me, and kept himfelt on his guard: I then atked
him to fuffer me to pafs by him, which he refufed, faying, that
the firft man that came a ftep nearer to him, he would fhoot ;
accordingly William Blake made the {ame requeft which was
denied: Blake, in return faid, d nmy e s but I will
go paft you, then he let offhis piftol, and immediately fhot him,
and the ball entered his right breaft, Blake then endeavoured to

make a blow at the prifoner after he was (hot, and his fick flew
out of his hand; the prifoner inftantly knocked him down,

with the end of the piftol ; John Thomas, who was at fome dif.
tance {fprung forward and feized the ftick that Blake had, and
knocked Chriftie down and fecured him; when he was fecured,
he endeavoured to draw a weapon from under his coat, which
was a kind of a tuck, drawn out of a ftick, [ s in Court, and
the piftol :) we put the wounded man in a coach, and conveyed
him to the hofpital; going along, the prifoner faid he was forry
for the accident, but he faid 1 owed my life to John Thomas,
for he firft meant to thoot him, (meaning the man that was fhot)
and‘then have run you, (meaning me) through.

- Mr. CON‘S'T, Pr{foner’s Coszcz.

0. You fay you are a midmipman »—A. 1 am employed.
Q. Are you a midfhipman?—A4. I do not know whesher |
deferve that appellation, the common appellation 1s that of a

ﬁrizé-maﬁer.

0. Do you know what a r;jidﬂﬁéman 1s?—A. Yes.

Q. Then
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Q Thcn YOU arc a midﬂ'upman ?-'--'-A,', I was thEH, I am Con-
fidered as fuch. o v i, Sl

(. Then thofe that have power have taken it away on account
of their idea of your conduct in this aétion (looking at a paper. )

0. You are reading a paper ?’—A. Yes. =

0. What 1s 1t ?—A. Minutes I'made the {fame day, as foon
as | could get paper and ink, I had no more paper, or eife I
fhould have written more, certainly ; he {aid you owe your
life to John Thomas, for I meant to have thot Blake, and then
run you through. | |

Q. Did you fay that bofore the coroner?—A4. 1 cannot fay,
whether I did or not, I was interrogated, I hardly knew what I
was about, for there were half a dozen gentlemen at the fame
time.

0. You was afterwards examined before a magiitrate ?—A.
Yes.

Q. Did you tell him that?—4. Yes. . ’

¢. Did you fwear?—A. Yes.

Q. You told your ftory three different times 7—A4. Yes.

(). Was you {ober at the time?—A4. I will tell you what 1
had drank, and any gentleman may tell whether 1 was {ober or
not.

0. Was you drunk ?—A4. I was {ober. :

Q. Do youremember any perfon accufing you of being drunk?
—A. 1donot, but I was very much confufed.

Q. You fay, the words all talk meant, for the men to come
out and do their duty ?>—4. Yes. I{uppofe fo.

- Q. Then he muft know on that fignal, that you meant to at-
tack him, on his coming out you followed him ?—4. We walk-
ed after him, we intended to imprefs him, no doubt,

Q. Did you know in what fervice he was ?—4. I cannot fay

I did. - '
0. Did you not fay he may be: a mate of a traniport, or he
may be the devil, but by God 1 will have him ?—<A4. I did not ;
I faid it fignifies nothing, I will over-haul him, or fomething to
that purpole. :

0. Did not he fay you are drunk, and will re{)ent this P— 4.
I could not be, when I had had only one glafs of grog after din-

ner.

Court, Gentlemen, from all the circumitances you have
heard, it is impoflible to make this amount to the crime of mur.
der, but unqueftionably it 1s that inftant violence, which in

| E 2 .poim:
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point of law will amount to manflaughter; therefore, that being
our clear opinion 1n point of law, if you are fatisfied we need
go no further. |

Guilty of Manflaughter, not guilty of Murder jommFined One Shil.
ling, and Imprifoned Twelve Months in Newgate. '

Mr. Baron Hotham tried the prifaner.

THE
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Robbing his Mafter.

e

JARVIS STREETER was indifled for felonioufly
Srealing on the 26th of March lafty forty-two glafs bot
tles, value 7s.; and fixty-three pints of port wine,
value 41., the property of Tuomas Lewis, Efq.
in his dwelling-houfe. ' '

A fecond count, laying it to be in a certain out-houfe
belonging to the profecutor.

The witneffes examined apart, at the requeft of the

_ prifoner. |

. The Cafe opened b'y Mr. TREBECK.

- JOHN HUMPHREYS, fworn.

AM a coachman, in the ftables in Jockey’s-fields, Bedford-
row; on. the 26th of March laft, I was looking out of the
ftable-.window, and Ifaw ahackney coachat Mr. Lewis’s ftable,
between nine and ten at night, I faw fomething put into the
coach, I could not fee what 1t was, I cannot fay who put it in,
I faw two perfons; after that, I went round to Mr. Lewis’s
houfe and informed the fervant, that there was fomething taken
out of the ftable, but what it was, I'could not tell; my %ellow-
fervant was not with me, Francis Roberts came to me; the
perfons
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perfons ordered the coachman to drive into Ruffell-fireet, Idid
not follow the coach, I {aw no more of it that evening; I am
fure the things cameout of Mr. Lewis’s ftable,

FRANCIS ROBERTS, fworn.

I am coachman to Mr, Cooper, of Southampton Buildings,
my malfter’s coach ftands at Jockey’s Fields; a little after nine
o'clock, as I was putting my pole into the carriage, a hackney
coach came down the mews, and was ordered to turn round, I
faw a box put into the coach, which came out of Mr. Lewis’s
ftable-door, I was at my own coach-houfe, about five or fix
yards diftance, I cannot {ay who put the box in, and there was
a little white bundle ; they got into the coach, and ordered the
man to drive to Great Ruflel.ftreet, the corner of fome place, I
do not know where; I faid to John Humphreys, I will follow
the coach, I tollowed it on my own coach-box, to the corner
ot Wooburn-fireet ; when I came up to it, Mifs Ladbroke’s
fervant had got the box on his fhoulder, the prifoner was with
him, they went down Wooburn-fireet : 1 afked the prifoner
where he lived, he faid at Mr. Lewis’s, in Bedford-row; I told
him, he would recollett he had a box out of Mr. Lewis’s {table,
he faid he had, 1 told him I knew he had, becaufe I faw him
lock the {table, and put the key into his pocket. .

THOMAS LEWIS, Efq. fworn.

I live in Bedlord-row ; ofx the 26th of March I was out of
town, I returned on Monday morning, and received {ome in-
formation from Mrs, Lewis, which led me to fulpeét the pri-
foner ; I called him into my room, with the houfe-keeper pre.
fent and my coachmag, an!a{ked him 1f he had been in the
ftable on the Sunday, he faid he had; I atked him who was in
company with him, he faid at firft, Mr. Worral’s groom was
with him in the {lable; I alked him 1t that man had a laced
hat on, be faid no: I then told him, I underftood that the per-
fon who was with him in the ftable. had a laced hat on ; then
he faid it was William, a fervant who had juit left my place:
I afked him what bufinefs he had there with William, he faid
he was aflifting him to take his things out of the ftable ; I afked
him if the things had been under his care, he faid no, but that
the coachman. had them, and he was aflifting to take them out
of the coachman’s flable, and the coachman, who was prefent
faid, that the things which the priloner had taken out of the

| {table,
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ftable, were the things which he had before in his cuftody ; I
afked the prifoner what things they were, he faid he did not
know particularly, he believed they were old clothes ; 1afked
him what they were in, he faid a {quare box and a bundle; I
then obferved to him, that it was very extraordinary he fhould
bave things belonging to this man, and I then defired him to
tell me the truth. _ e A | |
Court, Q, Did you make him any promifes>—4. No, he
{aid that was the truth; I afked him where William lived, he
¢aid he did not know ; I obferved to him that it was very extra.
ordinary ; I alked whether William was to call again, and he
{aid yes; I afked when, he {aid to-morrew ; I {aid, what 1s he
to call on you for, he faid he wilhed to befriend him ; I faid,
I thought 1t was a very extraordinary conneétion; I obferved
to him, that I thought he had done {omething very bad ; I then
defired him to give me an account of the plate, which was very
corrett ; I told him he muft quit my place that day montbh,
and about five o'clock, after we had dined, he went out; 1
went immediately to Mifs Ladbroke’s, and mentioned the
circumitance to her, and begged her permiflion to have her
{ervant up, which fhe gave, and he was called up to us, his
name 1s g-i—chard Hinfall; we went together to the houfe of
a hair-drefler, John Ward, of Woeoburn-ftreet, which runs out
of Great Ruflell-fireet; 1 afked Mr. Ward’s permiffion to go
up into an apartment in his houle, there I found a woman, whom
1 learned to be the wife of Richard Hinfall, and a child, there
1 was fhewn a box and a bundle, Mr. Ward. is the man who
keeps the houfe, Richard Hinfall, and this woman and child,
were in the houfe, there was no conflable; I examined the box
and bundle, in the box was wine, I think, upon the whole, there
was about three dozen and an half, in quart bottles, it was
red port;. in the bundle was wine likewife, ‘which was packed
in dtraw; I took it away in a backney coach, to my own
houfe, and I defired War! and Hinfall to remain without, they
brought in the wine: when I gothome, the prifoner was return.
ed, Iafked him where he had been, I made ufe of no threats or
promifes to him, he faid, as he underftood I intended to fend
~him to prifon.on the morrow, he had been to fee a friend; I
afked who his friend was, he faid it was Mr. Tubbs’s {ervant,
in Bedford-fquare; I afked him if he had been no where elfe, he
{faid no; I afked himif he had not been at Mifs Ladbroke’s houfe
he faid no; I-alked him 1t Mifs Ladbroke’s fervant was not wit};
him the night before, in my ftables, he faid no; T told him he

I | had
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had told me a great many falfities in the morning, and that thefe
were falfities likewife, that he had been at Mifs Ladbroke’s, and
that Mifs Ladbroke’s fervant was with him in the ftables, and
-that the box and bundle which he took out ot the ftable, contained
wine, which I fufpefted to be mine; he denied it: then | told
him, I had Mifs Ladbroke’s fervant at the door, and the wine,
and the man who keeps the houfe where Mifs Ladbroke’s fer.
vant had an apartment : he then exclaimed, oh! Sir, you watched
me to Mifs Ladbroke’s, and cried; I'atked him how he had got

the wine, he faid 1t was the favings out of bottles, and he intreat-
ed me to have mercy on him.

Mr. Avry, Prifoner’s Counfel.

0. 1 fee the indiétment charges forty-two bottles of wine?—
A, Yes.

Q. How many fervants have you, Sir?—4. Three or four..

Q. Therefore, I take it tor granted, 1t wasimpoflible to carry
out at any one time, {fuch a quantity of wine together?—. I
take it, it was not fo, becaufe the box and bundle contained the
quantity; 1 thing there were two dozen and ax halt in the box,
and one dozen 1n the bundle.

Q. Your cellaris attached to your houfe?—4. Yes.

¢. Do you thinkit was takenaway by one or two bottles at a
time ?—A. It appearstome, it muft have been carried away all

at one time. ;
0. Was it not originally taken from your cellar, one or two

bottles at a time P—A4, That I cannot tell.
Court. (). Had this man the care ot your cellar ?—4. No,
- 0. Had you miffed any wine >—A. No, I trufted the care of
my cellar to my houfe-keeper, I did not keep an accurate ac-

count of the wine. |
Q. Whatever quantities of wine might have been taken from

your cellar, youare fure that box was taken from your outhoufe?
—A. Yes, 1 went into the cellar atterwards, and difcovered
that there were {everal bottles taken from pipes that were fet up
by themfelves, that were not come into ufe, to a confiderable
~amount. im

0. Upon the whole, can you ftate how much you miffed ’—.
A. No, 1 cannot,

RICHARD HINSALL, fworn.

I live with Mifs Ladbroke; on the 26th of March, the pri-
foner came to No. 8, Queen-{quare, and afked me if I would
give William leave to let his box be in my room, William was

| a fer.
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a fervant who had lately left Mr, Lewis; I told him he was very
welcome to let his box be in my room: he afked me if I woul
aflift him to take it away, I did, he waited for me at the Swan,
in Little Ormond-ftreet, and we took a coach to Mr. Lewis’s,
when we got to the ftables, 1 affifted him in putiing a box and
bundle into the coach; we went to No, 1,Wooburn-ftreet, and
carried the box and bundle into my room, I did not know the
contents of the box or bundle; the box and bundle were faken
away by?! Mr. Lewis: I went to Mr. Lewis’s withmy landlord,
to his houfe, I believe 1t to be the fame box and in the fame
condition; I was prefent when Mr., Lewis called his fervant
up, but I was not in the room all the time: while 1 was there,
Mr. Lewis afked the prifoner how he came by the wine, and he
told him that he had faved 1t, and he afked for mercy.

ANN BROCKLEY, fworn.

I am houfe-keeper to Mr. Lewis, and have been fo twenty
years, I take care of the keys ot the cellar, I never gave the
prifoner but two bottles of wine at a time; after this affair was
difcovered, I found the key in his pantry, which opened the
cupboard where the keys of the cellar were kept.

GUILTY DEATH.—Aged 25.

Lord Kenyon tried the prifoner.

Foe - THE
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TH_OMAS PERRY and SAMUEL CH-ESTER,
. FOR ‘

A Highway Robbery.

L me

THOMAS PERRY and SAMUEL CHESTER
were indiﬁfdforfeloniou/ly affaulting SAmMveL Tin-
GAYy on the King's highway, on the 11th of April
! afty, and putting hum in fear and felonioufly taking

- from his perfonand againft his will, alinen purfe, va.
lue 1d.; a black leather pocket-book, value 12d.; a

- Dollar, value 45. gd.; and 441, 125., his property.

The Cale opened by Mr. 'KN OWLYS.
SAMUEL TINGAY, fworn.

- AM a droverand falefman at Caldecott, in Bedfordfhire; I
was returning from town home, on Tuefday the 11th ot
April, about {even in the morning, when I perceived the two
prifoners on horfe-back, on Finchley Common, near the eight
mile ftone, coming up behind me, I had a companion with me
- then, wholeft me at the high ftone at Hadley, about ei%ht miles
from town: when I had got about a furlong and an hal -furthf:r,
1 had occafion to difmount, and 1 hung my horfe at a gate; while

I was there, the two prifoners paffed me.

Q. Look at them, are they the two men that paffed you?—4.
They are.—1 then got on m{y horfe and faw them betore me, one
e

of them had got oft his horle, and was going gently on,
0. At
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0. At that time, had you any fufpicion that they were impro.
per people?-—A. None at ali: when I overtook them one was
about ten vards before the other; I overtook Chefter firft, and
was going‘r to fpeak to him, but when I {aw their faces, they
were not as I'expE&Ed them;. and “then the mher, who was
about ten yards before, turned his horfe round, and met me
with a piftol 1 his hand, that_ was Perry; and then the other
( Chefter ) came up behind me with a piltol: Perry demanded my
poc'ket-book, which Lgave him. |

0. That contained nothing valuable?-—A4 No, nothing of
any value: then the other prifoner demanded my money, which
o] gave him; there were forty-two guineas and an half in gold,

one dollar, and fome filver; there were a good many guineas,
but I do not know how many guineas and half guineas 1n parti-
cular: I begged for mercy, and hoped they would not mifufe
me. : | |
Q. They did not, ‘however, ufe you ill?—4. No, the prifo-
ner Perry faid, 1 was not to go off fo, and he got trom his horfe
and cut my girths, and likewifc the bridle and reins.

Q. Then you could not make ufe of either bridle or faddle?
~—A. No, he then got on his horfe, and they both rode off.
0. Having {een them on Finchley Common, and pafling you
at the road, and at the time they were with you, had you an op-
portunity of obferving both their countenances?—4. Yes, par-
ticularly, at the time of the robbery. '

Q. Had they any difguifeson their faces?—4. Not that 1
perceived, only their faces were very dirty, asif they had not
wafhed them very lately. Py -‘

- ¥ ]

0. There were no handkerchiefs put over them?—4. None.

0. You will recolleét, on your oath, the men’s lives depend
on it, have you any doubt that they are the men?—4. I never
was fo {ure of any thing 1n my life, Perry 1 looked very hard in
the face, when he came round my horfes head.

- Q. When you fay that, did you {peak toone or both?—4,
Both ; my horfe is a very gentle horle, and I went to take the
horfes head, and from thence in purfuit, anc\l could not find
them, I went to Bow-ftreet, about two the fame afternoon, and
gave information, and about eleven the next day, 1 faw the two
prifoners in Bow-{treet, 1 knew them perfettly, they were fit-
ting by themfelves, and 1 recolleted them direttly ; one of my
ﬁuineas was, worn down, which I recollett being among mine

rom the appearance of 1t,

Mr.
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Mr. GURNEY, Prifoner’s Ca-u_:%f.

Q. Although you faw the two pe_rft:;ns* that robbed vou cu
Finchley Common, you did not fee their faces?~—A4. No, not
at that ime, when they were behind me.

Q. Theretore, the only opportunity you had of obferving
their countenances was, during the time you was robbed ?—d.

Yes.

0. Had you been up all night?— 4. No, I had been to bed.

(). Itake it for.granted you was under no {mall degree of
alarm, one perfon coming UP to you with a pifiol before, and.
another behind ?—A4. I was frightened.

Q. That alarm might prevent you from obferving their coun-
tenances {o accurately, asif you had not been frightened ?—4. I
could perceive them perfeétly.

0. Being frightened as you were, could you obferve their
countenances {o perfettly, asif you had not been frightened ?—
A. Net quite fo perfettly, but I am perfeftly {ure of them.

Q. Are you more polfitive to the countenance of one than the
other?—A. Perry came up facing me, and I took particular no-

tice of his face, and likewife while he was cutting my girths,
but I am {ure of them both, |

0. Do youmean to fay, that youhad an equal opportunity of
oblerving both of them?—A4. Yes, Ihad.

(. Have you never f{aid, that you fhould not know the perfons
~ of the men that robbed you?—.4. No. -

0. Do you recolleét any talk of that kind?—4. No.

Q. Are you quite fure, that at Iflington you had no converfa.
tion of that kind?—4. Quite.

JOHN RIVETT, fworn.

- I am one of the officers of Bow-ftreet; in confequence of an
information from the profecutor, -on Tuefday, the 11th of April,
between two and three, I apprehended the two prifoners the next
morning, between {evenand eight, in Onflow-ftreet, Mutton-hill;
and in Perry’s lodgings, in a cradle, in fome ftraw, I found
this bag, which contained nineteen guineas and an half, I found
it on turning the {traw out, |

Court. (). Was the bag covered with ftraw ?>—4. Yes, there
was nineteen guineas and an half; likewife in the fame cradle,
I tound two leaded piftols, we then took them away; I went with

Macmanus



( 43 )

Macmanus and Pugent to the lodgings of Chefter, in Pipenia.
‘ker’s-alley, Cow-crofs, and tound him at home, and at the top
of the bed were a brace of piftols unloaded ; on fearching him,
1 found in one pocket tour guineas, two half guineas, aud four
fhillings and lix-pence; one t?f my brother officers found fome
more money; then we took him away, one gulnea was particu-
larly fpoken to by the profecutor. .

EDWARD PUGENT, fworn.

- 1am an officer; [ went with the laft witnels, to the prifoner
Perry’s lodgings, and apprehended him, from there we went to
Chefter’s lodgings, and in {earching his houfe, out ot a bonnet-
box, Itook anold handkerchief, and in it were eleven guineas,

in guineas and half guineas, and a dollar, I {aw all the other
things tound.

PATRICK  MACMANUS, fworn.

[ am one of the officers of Bow-ilreet, I went with my brother
officers to Perry’s lodgings, in his breeches-pocket 1 found a
guinea and an halt, four follars, and two fhillings; I was pre-
ent when the piftols were found, and alfo this powder-horn,
and a {mall quantity of powder in it. (Produces it.) We took
him to Bow-ftreet. (The guinea fhewn to the profecutor,)

Q. Is that your's’—4. 1 believe that is one of the guineas,
but I do not pretend to {wear to money. |

Prifoner Prrrvy’'s Defence,

I deal in horfes to kill, 1likewife deal in pigs, that is the way
{ came by the money, and I will prove 1t by witnefles, and the
way the money came to be found where 1t was, 1s, that there is
never a lock to any door in the houfe, and I put the money
there for fatety, and the officers knew the fame.

Prifoner CHESTER’s Defence.
He faid firfl, the men were in great coats with velvet collars,

he {aid he believed we were the men, and then they called him

on
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on one fide and tutored him, and then he faid he was [{ure of
it; they have done itto {wear away my life,

The prifoner Pefi*}r called one witnefs to his charaGer,
THOMAS PERRY,——GUILTY, DEATH.—Aged 29,
SAMUEL CHESTER,—GUILTY, DEAT H—Aged 3.

Mr. Recorder tried the priloners. '

THE



The following pages 41-48
do not appear to pertain to this pamphlet
but have been included
in this digital version
to accurately reflect
the printed version that was scanned.






(44
Lé
L
L3
¢
L 34

(4

¢d

4
L 4
€¢
L 34
‘6
¢
(1
Cc
‘c
4
“é

€c

£
ié
e

~e

£¢

ook ]

MRS PENRUDDOCK?’:

LAST LETTER TO HER HUSBAND.

My pear HEArT, : |

Y fad parting was fo far from making me forget you,
M that I icarce thought upon myfelf ﬁnce‘, but wholly
upon you. Thofe ‘dear embraces which I yet feel, .::md {hall
never lofe, being the faithful teftimonies of an indulgent
huiband, have charmed my foul to fuch a reverence of your re-
membrance, that were it poflible, I would, with my own blood,
cement your dead limbs to life again ; and (with reverence)
think it no fin to rob heaven a little while longer of a martyr.
Oh my dear! you muft now pardon my paffion, this being
my laft (oh fatal word!) that ever you will receive from me ;
and know, that until thelaft minute that I can imagine you fhall
live, I will facrifice the prayers of a chriftian, and the groans
of an affli¢ted wife. And when you are not (which fure by
fympathy I fhall know) 1 fhall wifh my own diffolution with
you, that fo we may go hand in hand to heaven. ’Tis too
late to tell you what I have, or rather have not done for you ;
how turned out of doors becaufe I came to beg mercy’; the
Lord lay not your blood to their charge. I would fain dif-
courfe longer with you, but dare not; paffion' begins to
drown my reafon, and will rob me of my deveire, which is all
I have left to ferve you. Adieu, therefore, ten thoufand times,
my deareft dear ; and fince I muft never fee you more, take
this prayer : may your faith be fo ftrengthened, that your con-
ftancy may continue, and then I know heaven will receive,
you ; whither grief and love will in a fhort time (I hope)
tranflate, '
My dear,

Your fad, but conftant wife even to
love your athes when dead,

ARUNDEL PENRUDDOCK.

T Mﬁ;y the 3d, 1653, eleven o’clock at night.  Your children
beg your blefing, and prefent their duties to you.”

Yai. T F ' I'de
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I do not know that I have ever read any thing fo affeCtionate as
as that line, Thofe dear embraces which yet I feel.

Mr. Penruddock’s anfwer has an equal tendernefs, which I {hall
recite alfo, that the town may dilpute whether the man or the
woman exprefled themfelves the more kindly, and ftrive to
imitate them in lefs circumftances of diftrefs, for from all no

couple upon earth are exempt.

i — — s —— e — :
ST \

MK PENRYUDDOCK:

LAST EETTER-TO HiS LADY.

DEAREST, BEST OF CREATURES,
- Had taken leave of the world when I received your’s: Tt
¢« R did at once recall my fondnefs for life, a nd enable me
¢ to refign it. AsI am fure I fhall leave none behind me like
¢ you, which weakens my refolution to part from you, fo when
¢ Ireflett I am going to a place where there are none but fuch
¢“ as you, I recover my courage. But fondnefs breaks in upon
¢ me ; and as I would not have my tears flow to-morrow, when
- ¢ your hufband, and father of our dear babes, is a public
¢¢ fpetacle; do not. think meanly of me, that I give way to
¢ grief now in private, when I fee my fand run fo faft, and I
¢¢ within a few hours am to leave you helplefs, and expofed to
¢¢ the mercilefs and infolent, that have wrongfully put me to a
¢¢ {hameful death, and will objeét that {hame to my poor chll-
¢¢ dren. 1 thank you for all your goodnefs to me, and will.
¢¢ endeavour to die, as to do nothing unworthy that virtue in
¢¢ which we have mutually fupported each other, and for which
¢¢ T defire you not repine that I am firft to be rewarded, fince
¢¢_you ever preferred me to-yourfelf in all other things ; afford

¢ me, with chearfulnefs, the precedence in this.

~¢¢ T defire your prayers in the article of death, for my own
‘¢ will then be offered for you and your’s. o .
- J. PENRUDDOCK.

ADVER-
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AN ALLEGORICAL TALE.

Continued from page 7.

H E heart that can fympathize with the diftrefled, feeks

1 nobler end thaf pecuniary advantages, accuftomed to feel
by the nicer {enfations of humanity the troubles of the
wretched, and impelled by the {fame ardour to relieve and bear
a part of their calamities. Obfcurity returned with his little care
to his hofpitable home—Adverfity, though a child, was {enfibly
affaCted at the conduct of his relations—It lay heavy on a heart
already big with afflition, and pregnant with future misfortunes
—1I think, faid he, mv relations are very unkind—Obicurity
fhook his head, and filent contemplation fupplied the place of
converfation till they arrived at the cottage—Nothing but the
little checquered occurrences of an infant life employed feveral
fucceeding months of Adverfity’s time ; indeed a fucceflion of
years paft without any thing but ordinary events to mark their
progrefs—The curate furnifhed the mind of his pupil with a ftore
not eafily exhaufted, and thereby amply fupplied the want ?f
fortune, neceflary to promote youth in this bufy world. Rich in
the poffeffion of human virtues, Obfcurity was called from hence
before his little friend—Adverfity was well capable of providing
for himfelf ; he had been little known beyond the limits of his
own parith, and never having been pofiefled of any other title
to Fame than his own merit, fhe abandoned him, and left him
nothing but the found of the church bell to proclaim a diffolution,
for which the village wept; borne by the ruftics of the place,
Obfcurity was depofited in his grave ; a grave bedewed by tears,
not flowing from the folemnity of the Icene, but from the pure
anguifh of foul of a furrounding multitude.—The earth, as
it founded on his coffin from the fexton’s {pade, when the
words ¢ Earth to Earth” were pronounced, fell not fo heavy
on its lid as on the hearts of his parithioners—The laft office
performed, he was left by a weeping flock ; diftinguithed by no
monument to proclaim his virtues, but acts which are imprinted
on the hearts of grateful remembrance ; the worthy man ftill re-
ceived on his briered tomb the tributary tear, and the weekly bell

X ¥ 2 brings
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brings not f{o fure the congregation to the church as anguith
from their hearts at the lofs of their father and gwde.
{ .

Adverfity divefted of his friend, had loft his all—A {fecond
application was made to his relations ; they were deaf to his in-
treatics, and refufed to render him even a prefent relief.—T hus
fituated, he packed up the few neceflaries he poflefled, and with
a weight of -griet, much greater than his baggage, he left the
only {pot that had given him relief, which it 1s the peculiar duty -
of the good Chrniftian to aflord to the diftrefled.

At the dawn of day, when the cock, herald of the morn,
awakens the indufitrious to labour, and the diftrefled to new
cafes, Adverfity, with a fmall wallet, contaning his provifions
by his fide, and a bundle of no great magnitude acrofs his
fhoulder, fufpended on a little ftick, fet forward on the journey
of life.—Alas! it is a hard tafk to depict the feelings of a
wandering outcaft, compelled to bear the icorn of the opulent
upftart, and impreft with the fineft ienfations of {orrow and gra-
titude at forfaking an atylum, which has long fheltered him from
diftrefs ; but fhould Fancy, with her fkilful pencil, paint a grate-
ful youth approaching the laft abode of a deceafed friend ; thould
{he prefent to me the ponderous tear {welling within his eyes,
penfive beneath the venerable grave, fixed with amufing
melancholy on the fod not yet grown green upon the new made
grave, .it would be a language moft elegantiy deferiptive of the
feelings'of his heart; fympathy needs not eloquence.—Nature
has furnifhed organs beautifully expreflive of the paflions to
awaken the feelings, and dictate the bofom of humanity to per-
form its office.—In fome fuch fituation was Adverfity on the
morning of his departure.—It was prompted by the impulie of
an honeft beart ; thus he vifited, for the laft time, the {ill abode
of his loft benefactor, unconfcious of being feen—Nature
revelled at large on his features, and falfehood was a ftranger to
his breaft ; he did what gratitude could not refift ; he purfued
his journey ; he turned his eves when he came to the fummit of
a neighbourmg hull, and faw the {pot, and on plocecdlng loﬂ it
for ever.

~ \

Zo be continued,

The



E 248

The following extract from Charles de Salis, Efq; at St. Trone,
near Marleilles, to his brother the Rev. Mr. de Salis, in

England, dated June 17, 1772, being rather extraordinary,
is deemed worthy a place in this Mifcellany. |

¢ HERE is a boy here of twelve years of age, who
¢4 has the faculty of dilcovering water under ground
¢¢ this gift of his was dilcovered about a year ago in the follow-
¢ jng manner ; he was {tanding at work by his father, who was
¢ digging, and ona fudden called out, ¢ Do not dig too deep,
¢t or the water will appear.” The man had the curiofity to dig
¢¢ about three feet deep, and found a confiderable {pring. This
¢ fingular thing being known in the province, {everal people of
¢ diftinction, who wanted water on their eftates, fent for him ;
¢“ amongft others, Monfieur Borelle {fent for him to an eftate of
his, where, according to tradition, there had been three {prings.
The boy, without hefitation, carried him to every one of
¢¢ them. Monfieur de Bompart, commander of the {quadron
¢¢ at Toulon, fent for him to a houfe of his near the town ;
¢ Monfieur de Bompart was {o convinced of the boy’s 1kill,
¢¢ that he immediately fell to work, and has fucceeded. At a
¢ houfe, which the Duke de Villars lived in, fome of the water
““ conduits under it were choaked up ; and as the direStionl of
them was not known, they, to fave the expence of taking up
the floors, fent for the boy, who, on being carried to the
¢ {pot, pomnted to the place, and faid, 3¢ Here the conduit
‘¢ begins, and goes 1 fuch a direétion, &c.” So much on the
¢ relation of others ; now for what I have feen myfelf- ‘There
¢¢ was a neighbour of mine, as curious as myfelf to find out
¢« whether this boy had really fuch a gift. We agreed to put
¢¢ water in a large earthen pan, hermetically covered with ano-
¢¢ ther, and then place it ina hole, two feet under-ground, on a
¢ vineyard that had been lately tilled. In order that nobody
¢¢ {fhould inform of 1t, at night we dug the hole ourfelves, then
¢t covered it over, and fmoothed the ground for twenty feet -
¢« round. This we did in two places. ~ The boy arrived the
¢ pext morning, and we took him abbdut the country to fhew his
«« {kill. He went before us alone, with his hands in a fhort
. ¢ waiftcoat, and ftopped fhort whenever he found water, {poke
«« of it, and followed to the fpring head. Little by little we
¢ brought him to where the water was hid ; and I never was fo

aftonifhed

(4
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¢¢ aftonifhed in my life as to fee him go out of the way, {tamp upon
¢¢ the fpot, and{ay, ¢ Hereis water here, but it does not run.’
¢ The earth was removed and the pan found under. We took
¢ him by the {econd place, which he alfo difcovered, but was
¢ angry at being deceived. He then found out a large {pring
¢¢ near my neighbour’s houfe, which he was greatly in want
¢¢ of for an oil-mill he has there.”’

The following lines are not given as a [pecimen of poetical merit,
nor are they meant to give offence to any one ; there is fomething
ahimfical in the idea, and which alone has procured them a

place in this Mifcellany, to add to the amufement of our numer-
ous readers.

T Almack’s of pidgeons I am told there are flocks,
But ’tis thought the compleateft s one Mr. F—x.
If he touches a card, if he rattles the box,
Away fly the guineas of this Mr. F—x.
He has met, I’m afraid, with fo many hard knocks,
T hat cafh is not plenty with this Mr. F—x.
In gaming, it’s faid, he’s the ftouteft of cocks,
No man can play deeper than this Mr. F—x.

Of eftates the entails without mercy he docks,

So thoughtlefs a gambler is this Mr. F—x. '
O, ye Hawkes, fure your hearts muft be harder than rocks,

If you win without pity from this Mr. F—x.
And he always muft lofe, for the ftrongeft of locks
Cannot keep any money for this Mr. F—x.

No doubt fuch behaviour exceedingly fhocks,

All the friends and acquaintance of this Mr. F—x.
For they with from their fouls, they would put in the ftocks,
And make an example of this Mr. F—x.

He’s a Member of P————— too with a pox,
Or had {oon been in gaol would this Mr. F—x.
He’s exceedingly curious in coats and in- frocks,

So the taylor’s a pidgeon to this Mr, F—x,

Yet
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Yet his cloaths, and his ﬂnrts, nay her ladythip’s fmocks, -
Would be pawn’d for a guinea by this Mr. F—x,
He delights much in hunting tho’ fat as an 0X).

I pity the horfes of this Mr. F—x.
They are probably moit of them lame in the hocks,

What a frolickfome gentleman is this Mr, F—x.

AT N kel - N T

A N B W 8 R R g

Give me, ye gods, but health and content, -
Let my cottage with them but be bleft ;
For the baubles of fafhion I’ll never lament,
No ambition fhall trouble my reft :
I’ll ne’er envy the mifer whoweeps o’er his wealth,
Let the fot {t1ll his bottle carefs ;
My fortune and pride is contentment and health,
All the riches I wifth to poﬂ‘efs

Should the phy fical tribe debate on a cafe,
Either'eye is ftill fix’d on the purfe, Ea e
Till the fee is in view, they’ll not quite the place,
Then they march till the patient grows worfe ¢
In the law too this practice increafes, ’tis faid,
Cafh engages them more than a deed ;
No lawyer with you, Sir, will trouble his head,
Nor ftir hand or foot till his fee’d.

When tich with his gains, old Av’rice fits down,

Or hobbles with crutches about ;
His heart’s not fo eafy by half as the clown,
Nor his conicience fo honeft I doubt

His fear’s in alarm, left he loies his wealth,
And his body too weak for its care ;
He feels now the want of contentment and health,
And unwilling he dies full of fear,
i

The
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" The clown who the village fcarce ever has feen,

But when holliday bells do invite,

He careleflly trips with his lafs o’er the green,

- Who he eagerly treats to each fight :

No paffion poffefles or trouble for wealth,
All he afks is the food for the day,

A holliday coat with contentment and health ;
His life thus jogs eafy away.

¥O0 CORRESPONDENTE

Ebenexer Shandy’s letter merits nothing more than filent con-
tempt.—We are forry he {eems to have read good authois with
very hittle profit § his poetry and profe are equal in point of ab-
furdity, and we take pleafure in acquainting, this would-be-witty
~fpark, that his compofition is configned to the filthy regions that
are thie proper receptacle for fuch. trafh.

The letters ﬁgned A. B ——Pohcy-—-and others addiefled to
the Lottery Spy are recewed and will be attended to.

- Crifpin’s lines havc appeared often and are therefore im-
propcr for infertion. |



